# U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR Employment and Training Administration

NOTICE OF AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS AND FUNDING OPPORTUNITY

**ANNOUNCEMENT FOR:** YouthBuild 2025

**ANNOUNCEMENT TYPE:** Initial

**FUNDING OPPORTUNITY NUMBER:** FOA-ETA-26-38

**ASSISTANCE LISTING NUMBER: 17.274** 

Submit all applications in response to this announcement through https://www.grants.gov.

#### **FUNDING DETAIL:**

Expected Total Available Funding	\$98,000,000
Expected Number of Awards	57
Funding Range Per Award	\$1,000,000 - \$2,000,000

Awards made under this Announcement are subject to the availability of federal funds. In the event that additional funds become available, we reserve the right to use these funds to select more grantees from the applications submitted in response to this Announcement.

#### **KEY DATES:**

	03/02/2026 We must receive applications no later than <b>11:59 pm Eastern Time.</b>		
Expected Period of Performance Start Date	07/01/2026		
Period of Performance Length	40		

# **Table of Contents**

I. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY	2
II. ELIGIBILITY	2
A. Eligible Applicants	2
B. Cost Sharing	4
C. Period of Performance	4
III. PROGRAM DESCRIPTION	6
A. Purpose	6
B. Program Goals and Objectives	8
C. Expected Performance Outcomes	8
D. Funding Type	9
E. Eligible Participants	9
F. Program Authority	10
G. Definitions	10
H. Funding Restrictions, Policies and Limitations	12
I. Required Partnerships	13
IV. APPLICATION CONTENT AND FORMAT	14
A. SF-424, Application for Federal Assistance	14
B. Project Budget, Composed of the SF-424A and Budget Narrative	14
C. Project Narrative	15
D. Attachments to the Project Narrative	27
V. SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS AND DEADLINES	30
A. How to Obtain an Application Package	30
B. Unique Entity Identifier and System for Award Management	30
C. Submission Instructions	30
D. Intergovernmental Review	31
E. Other Submission Requirements	31
VI. APPLICATION REVIEW INFORMATION	31
A. Responsiveness Review	31
B. Review Criteria	32
C. Review and Selection Process	33
D. Risk Review	33
VII. AWARD NOTICES	33
A. Award Document	34

B. Award Timing and Notification to Applicants3	4
VIII. POST AWARD REQUIREMENTS AND ADMINISTRATION3	4
A. Administrative and National Policy Requirements3	4
B. Reporting3	6
IX. RESOURCES3	6
X. OMB INFORMATION COLLECTION3	7
APPENDIX A - Instructions for Finding Labor Force Participation Data Using the United States Census Bureau Data	8
APPENDIX B - Instructions for Finding Poverty Data Using the United States Census Bureau Data	
APPENDIX C - Instructions for Finding Poverty Data Using the United States Census Bureau Data for Indian reservations, Oklahoma Tribal Statistical Areas, Native Alaskan Villages, or Native Hawaiian Homelands	

#### I. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Employment and Training Administration (ETA), U.S. Department of Labor (DOL, or the Department, or we), announces the availability of grant funds for YouthBuild 2025.

Under this Funding Opportunity Announcement (FOA), the DOL will award grants through a competitive process to eligible public or private non-profit organizations or Tribal entities to provide pre-apprenticeship occupational skills training, education, and job placement services to disadvantaged and low-income youth. YouthBuild is a pre-apprenticeship program that prepares participants for quality jobs in various industry sectors and aligns with Executive Order 14278, "Preparing Americans for High-Paying Skilled Trade Jobs of the Future," specifically by preparing participants to enter and succeed in Registered Apprenticeships. YouthBuild also includes wrap-around supportive services such as assistance in transportation, childcare, and housing. YouthBuild programs must offer participants construction training and hands-on experiences building affordable housing for their community. Programs may also include a Construction Plus component, providing vocational training in additional high-demand industries.

For further information or technical questions about this FOA, please contact Khanh Tran, Grants Management Specialist, Office of Grants Management, at YB\_FOA-ETA-26-38@dol.gov and specifically reference FOA-ETA-26-38. This Announcement is available on the ETA website at https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/grants and at https://www.grants.gov.

#### II. ELIGIBILITY

# A. Eligible Applicants

#### 1. The following organizations are eligible to apply:

- State governments
- County governments

- City or township governments
- Special district governments
- Independent school districts
- Public and State controlled institutions of higher education
- Private non-profit institutions of higher education
- Native American tribal governments (Federally recognized)
- Public housing authorities/Indian housing authorities
- Native American tribal organizations (other than Federally recognized tribal governments)
- Nonprofits having a 501(c)(3) status with the IRS, (including charter schools) other than institutions of higher education
- Nonprofits without 501(c)(3) status with the IRS, other than institutions of higher education

Subject to the number of quality applications, DOL intends to award at least 50 percent of the total available grant competition funding to eligible applicants previously funded by the DOL YouthBuild program that have demonstrated success in the program, referred to as Category A. DOL will award the remainder of funds to other qualifying organizations, referred to as Category B. Category A applicants can request funding between \$1,000,000 and \$2,000,000; Category B applicants can request funding between \$1,000,000 and \$1,500,000.

Entities that received funding from the FY 2024 YouthBuild competition [FOA-ETA-24-53] are ineligible to apply to this FOA. DOL assesses the eligibility of funding recipients based on an entity's unique Employer Identification Number (EIN). Additionally, DOL will award only one grant to an organization, which must have a unique EIN, and must not administer its program services at the same location as any other YouthBuild grantee. For governmental or public sector entities that share an EIN but have multiple locations, DOL will consider these entities as different entities provided they have separate Unique Entity Identifiers (UEI) and an active SAM.gov registration. Please see Section IV.A for more information about UEI and SAM registration.

Among eligible applicants listed above, the applicant agency or organization must also maintain a physical local presence in any identified target communities the applicant proposes to serve.

Faith-based organizations are encouraged to apply, as are all organizations. Those that meet the eligibility requirements may receive awards under this funding opportunity. DOL will not, in the selection of recipients and administration of the grant, discriminate on the basis of an organization's religious character, affiliation, exercise, or lack thereof, or on the basis of conduct that would not be considered grounds to favor or disfavor a similarly situated secular organization.

### 2. Number of Applications Applicants May Submit

We will consider only one application from each organization. If an organization submits multiple applications, only the most recently received application that meets the deadline will be considered. If the most recent application is disqualified for any reason, we will not replace it with an earlier application.

### **B.** Cost Sharing

This program requires cost sharing (including matching) funds. These cost sharing funds may be in the form of cash or in-kind contributions and equal to **25 percent** of the total federal share of costs. Any resources contributed to the project in addition to cost sharing funds will be considered leveraged resources. Section <a href="IV.B">IV.B</a> provides more information on leveraged resources.

In accordance with 2 CFR 200.306, match amounts must be verifiable from the recipient's or sub-recipient's records, not included as contributions for any other federal award, necessary and reasonable for achieving the objectives of the federal award, and not provided by the Federal Government under another federal award.

Applicants should pay special attention to the requirements regarding match sources listed in <u>TEGL 05-10</u>, <u>Change 1</u>, "Updated Guidance on Match and Allowable Construction and Other Capital Asset Costs for the YouthBuild Program," as well as the YouthBuild Selected Cost Items attachment.

Some examples of allowable match include commitments from non-federal public sources (e.g., states, municipalities, public school boards), charter schools, local trade or technical schools, and through the commitment of internal resources.

**Matching Waiver for U.S. Insular Areas, Pursuant to 48 U.S.C. §1469a(d):** For the purposes of this FOA, DOL does not require any match for grants made to the governments of American Samoa, Guam, the U.S. Virgin Islands, and the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands. Accordingly, DOL does not require these areas to include a match commitment in their applications, and DOL will not screen out these applications on that basis. However, even though DOL does not require matching funds from these areas, it encourages these areas to leverage resources, including dollars from federal sources.

Matching Waiver for Tribal Entities: In addition to the above waiver, DOL does not require any match for YouthBuild grants made to: Indian and Native American entities eligible for grants under Sec. 166 of WIOA, including federally and other than federally recognized Tribes, Native American non-profit organizations, and Native Hawaiian and Alaska Native organizations. Accordingly, DOL does not require these entities to include a match commitment in their applications, and DOL will not screen out these applications on that basis. However, even though DOL does not require matching funds from these areas, these entities are required to commit additional resources to the grant project. These additional resources may be leveraged resources, including dollars from federal sources, or other types of contributions.

For a complete understanding of this application requirement, see the <u>2025 Application Guide</u>, Section II.B Cost Sharing.

#### C. Period of Performance

The performance period on the front page of this FOA includes all necessary implementation and start-up activities.

The 40-month period of performance includes three phases:

Months	Phase	Activities
(Duration)		

1 through 4* (up to 4)	Planning (optional, no participants enrolled)	Hiring staff, finalizing partnerships, revising budget, initiating participant recruitment plans, reconfirming work site financing and access, and reconfirming match funding
5* through 28 (at least 24)	Active Program (required, participants enrolled)	Education, occupational skills training, and youth leadership development activities
29 through 40 (12)	Follow-up (required, no participants enrolled)	Supportive services and tracking of participant outcomes for each cohort of youth

<sup>\*</sup> Grantees may opt to reduce the optional planning phase and extend active program time, though follow-up must be 12 months and the grant period of performance must not exceed 40 months.

Examples of a 40-month program planner can be found here: <a href="https://youthbuild.workforcegps.org/resources/2019/08/07/12/21/Program\_Planner\_Map">https://youthbuild.workforcegps.org/resources/2019/08/07/12/21/Program\_Planner\_Map</a> .

#### 1. Planning

While this phase is optional, as grantees may instead choose to extend their active program, grantees must ensure the achievement of the following before enrolling participants:

- Hiring or committing of core program staff (including the three required core positions of Project Manager/Director, Case Manager, and Job Developer/Placement Specialist and Construction Trainer(s), Classroom Teacher(s), etc.), if not already hired;
- Contacting the local Workforce Development Board or American Job Center (AJC) to finalize Memoranda of Understanding (MOU) requirements, establish an infrastructure funding agreement, and make plans for collaborating with other required partners, including employers;
- Revising the program budget to reflect updates as necessary, e.g., contributions to AJC infrastructure costs;
- Solidifying relationships with all necessary partners for the successful delivery of services;
- Initiating recruitment and outreach efforts for enrollment of participants;
- Reconfirming work site financing and access (; and
- Reconfirming match sources and amounts.

Grantees should document any challenges (e.g., lack of response from a required partner) and share them with their Federal Project Officer (FPO) as early as possible.

#### 2. Active Program

During this phase, grantees enroll and provide services for one or more cohorts of participants. As specified in 20 CFR 688.340, an eligible individual selected for participation in the program must be offered full-time participation in the program for not less than 6 months and not more than 24 months.

Grantees must structure their program to provide YouthBuild program participants education services and activities for at least 50 percent of the active program time. They must provide work

and skill development activities in occupational skills training for at least 40 percent of the active program time, which includes both time spent on the construction work sites or other hands-on work experience, as well as classroom training related to the occupational field. The 50-40 percent time allocation applies to the grant program as a whole and not to how one participant spends time in a component. Grantees can use the remaining 10 percent to further strengthen the vocational training component or the education services, or they can use this time for a distinct youth leadership development or community service-learning component.

3. Follow-Up

As each cohort of participants exits the program, grantee staff must track and report on individual participant outcomes and must make follow-up services available to all participants for 12 months. All participants must exit before the final 12 months of the overall period of performance, which is reserved for follow-up. Grantees may structure their program such that cohorts of participants exit before the final 12 months; in that case, some cohorts' follow-up phases may finish before the end of the overall period of performance.

Participants may decline to receive follow-up services, but grantees must attempt contact with each exited participant more than once for securing documentation to report a performance outcome. Under YouthBuild, as defined in 20 CFR 688.120 and 688.560, allowable follow-up services may include:

- Leadership development and supportive service activities;
- Regular contact with a participant's employer;
- Assistance in securing better paying jobs, career development, and further education;
- Work-related peer support groups;
- Adult mentoring;
- Services necessary to ensure the success of youth participants in employment and/or postsecondary education;
- Tuition assistance for obtaining college education credits or enrolling in a technical education; and
- Scholarships to pay for Registered Apprenticeship related technical instruction or necessary supportive services.

**Grantees must reserve a minimum of five percent of grant funds for the twelve-month follow-up phase.** Grantees must fully expend grant and match funds during the period of performance.

#### III. PROGRAM DESCRIPTION

# A. Purpose

YouthBuild is a workforce development program that provides education, occupational training, and leadership development activities for disadvantaged and low income youth: individuals between the ages of 16 and 24, most who did not complete high school and face other barriers to employment. Eligibility requirements, including exceptions, are discussed below.

# **Pre-apprenticeship**

The WIOA regulations at 20 CFR 688.120 recognize YouthBuild programs funded by DOL as pre-apprenticeship programs. Pre-apprenticeship, as defined in 20 CFR 681.480, means a program designed to prepare individuals to enter and succeed in a Registered Apprenticeship Program (RAP) and includes the following elements:

- 1. Training and curriculum that aligns with the skill needs of employers in the economy of the state or region involved;
- 2. Access to educational and career counseling and other supportive services, directly or indirectly;
- 3. Hands-on, meaningful learning activities that are connected to education and training activities, such as exploring career options, and understanding how the skills acquired through coursework can be applied toward a future career;
- 4. Opportunities to attain at least one industry-recognized credential; and
- 5. A partnership with one or more RAPs that assists in placing individuals who complete the pre-apprenticeship program in a RAP.

YouthBuild applicants must include construction skills training and may include occupational skills training in other in-demand industries. This expansion into additional in-demand industries is the Construction Plus component. For more information on Construction Plus please see Section III.G. Definitions.

#### **Construction Skills Training and Work Sites**

Applicants must describe their plans to provide construction skills training while participants build or substantially renovate at least one unit of housing during the grant period of performance. Housing built and/or renovated by YouthBuild participants must be available only for homeless and/or low-income individuals and families, with this requirement stated in a restrictive covenant lasting at least five years. For more details about the requirements for housing constructed by YouthBuild participants, see 20 CFR 688.730.

Substantial renovation includes activities that will provide YouthBuild participants with significant construction experience and knowledge which prepares them for employment in the construction industry. Applicants should use their selected construction curriculum as a planning resource to ensure alignment with the skills participants can learn in hands-on work site experiences. Painting, cleaning, and changing fixtures, for example, do not constitute a comprehensive level of construction training. For guidance on construction credentials, refer to TEGL 35-12. For guidance on qualifying work sites, refer to TEGL 06-15.

Applicants must propose at least one construction work site and may propose no more than three with their grant application. Grantees may propose additional work sites during the grant period of performance.

Applicants must provide a separate, completed, and signed work site form (ETA-9143), with attachments, for each proposed work site. Applicants must include all ETA-9143 forms as attachments to the Project Narrative. These attachments do not count against page limitations. Attachment E of this FOA provides a link to download ETA-9143, as well as instructions for completion.

Consistent with <u>2 CFR 200.112</u>, DOL requires grantees and subrecipients to have a written policy in place on conflicts of interest, including organizational conflicts of interest. The policy must include the process the recipient or subrecipient will take to identify, avoid, remove, and remedy conflicts of interest. Applicants must ensure that no employee, officer, or agent, any member of their immediate family, or an organization which employs or is about to employ any of the individuals listed here, has a financial or other interest in or a tangible personal benefit from the YouthBuild construction project proposed in this application.

Section 171(c)(2) permits YouthBuild grantees to use grant funds or other sources to pay for stipends or subsidized wages during the required construction component.

Applicants should also note that construction work sites that use funding from specific U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) programs may trigger Davis-Bacon and Related Acts (DBRA) requirements. DBRA prevailing wage rates generally equate to journeyman-level wages. For more information on DBRA generally, see <a href="Davis-Bacon and Related Acts">Davis-Bacon and Related Acts</a>, and for YouthBuild compliance with DBRA, refer to <a href="TEGL 11-16">TEGL 11-16</a>.

To ensure that grantees are meeting the minimum construction requirement, and to aid in collecting data on the impact of the YouthBuild program on local communities, grantees must complete and submit at least four Annual Housing Census forms, one for each reporting period that overlaps with the grant period of performance.

### **B. Program Goals and Objectives**

The goals of the YouthBuild program are to:

- Develop partnerships and pathways that lead directly to high-wage employment and placements in Registered Apprenticeship Programs (RAPs);
- Provide youth with workforce readiness skills to achieve economic self-sufficiency through the pursuit of post-secondary education, training, RAPs, and employment in indemand occupations;
- Expand the supply of permanent affordable housing for low-income or homeless individuals and families;
- Encourage the alignment of the pre-apprenticeship model with training for construction industries, as well as in-demand industries through Construction Plus for participants who may not have an interest in a construction career or in local areas where construction may present less of a growth industry than other fields;
- Offer an educational alternative for young people interested in hands-on, meaningful learning activities, aligning with Executive Order 14191, "Expanding Educational Freedom and Opportunity for Families"
- Prepare participants to enter and succeed in RAPs, aligning with Executive Order 14278,
   "Preparing Americans for High-Paying Skilled Trade Jobs of the Future"; and
- Expand access to high-quality AI coursework and certifications, aligning with Executive Order 14277, "Advancing Artificial Intelligence Education for Youth".

# **C. Expected Performance Outcomes**

DOL expects YouthBuild grantees awarded under this FOA to track and report on the primary indicators of performance as listed in WIOA Section 116(b)(2)(A)(ii). The YouthBuild program is held to the six WIOA primary indicators of performance for youth, as well as an additional indicator established by DOL. These indicators are:

- 1. Education and Employment Rate Second Quarter After Exit;
- 2. Education and Employment Rate Fourth Quarter After Exit;
- 3. Median Earnings Second Quarter After Exit;
- 4. Credential Attainment;

- 5. Measurable Skill Gains;
- 6. Effectiveness in Serving Employers; and
- 7. Percentage of participants that enter a Registered Apprenticeship within one year of exit. Additional information on WIOA performance indicators (the first six above) can be found at

<u>Training and Employment Guidance Letter (TEGL) 10-16</u>: "Performance Accountability Guidance for Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) Core Programs." DOL has added the seventh indicator for grantees funded under this competition in alignment with Executive Order 14278, "Preparing Americans for High-Paying Skilled Trade Jobs of the Future," and its stated goal of reaching and surpassing 1 million active apprentices.

This FOA evaluates the Category A applicants based on the performance indicators above. Applicants should be prepared to demonstrate success with the seven performance indicators above, which will be used to evaluate applicants in future grant competitions.

The outcome goals for the successful applicants under this FOA are as follows:

Performance Indicator	Outcome Goal
Education and Employment Rate – Second Quarter After Exit	75%
Education and Employment Rate – Fourth Quarter After Exit	70%
Median Earnings – Second Quarter After Exit	\$6,000*
Credential Attainment	80%
Measurable Skill Gains	70%
Effectiveness in Serving Employers	50%
Percentage of participants that enter a Registered Apprenticeship within one year of exit	10%

<sup>\*</sup>ETA is reviewing data to determine ways to measure earnings for exiters in employment, and may require organizations awarded under this FOA to update employment data collection to assist with differentiating goals for exiters working part or full time.

# **D. Funding Type**

Funding will be provided in the form of a Grant. Throughout this FOA, all references to grants are applicable to cooperative agreements.

# E. Eligible Participants

Per <u>20 CFR 688.300</u>, an individual is eligible to participate in a YouthBuild program if the individual:

- 1. Is 16-24 years old on the date of enrollment;
- 2. Left high school without a diploma, including an individual who left high school without a diploma and subsequently reenrolled; and
- 3. Is one or more of the following:
  - o A member of a low-income family;
  - o In foster care (including youth who have aged out of foster care);
  - An offender;
  - An individual with a disability;
  - o The child of an incarcerated parent; or

o A migrant youth.

Not more than 25 percent of the participants in a YouthBuild program may be individuals who do not meet requirements 2 or 3 above, if such individuals:

- 1. Are basic skills deficient, as defined in § 688.120; or
- 2. Have been referred by a local secondary school for participation in a YouthBuild program.

#### **Veterans' Priority for Participants**

<u>38 U.S.C. 4215</u> requires DOL grantees to provide priority to veterans and spouses of certain veterans for employment, training, and placement services in any job training program directly funded, in whole or in part, by DOL.

For a complete understanding of this application requirement, see the <u>2025 Application Guide</u>, Section III.E Veterans' Priority for Participants.

# F. Program Authority

Section 171 of WIOA (Pub. L. 113-128) authorizes this program.

#### G. Definitions

#### 1. Construction Plus

Construction Plus (C+) is optional expansion into additional occupational skills training. Grantees approved for C+ must still train participants in construction and fulfill the requirement to build or substantially renovate at least one unit of housing during the grant period of performance. Grantees may require all participants to complete construction training before beginning C+ training, or they may give participants the option to choose between construction and C+. Category A applicants may propose one or more C+ fields. Category B applicants may propose only one C+ field.

#### C+ applicants must:

- Initiate relevant plans and partnerships at the time of grant application;
  - o Grantees may not propose additional training fields after award
- Provide training either directly or through a contract;
  - o Referring YouthBuild participants to training partners does not qualify as C+
- Include as an attachment separate Construction Plus Proposals for each additional industry proposed. You can find the Construction Plus Field Proposal under FORMS: <a href="https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/youth/youthbuild">https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/youth/youthbuild</a>.

#### Each C+ Proposal must include:

- The field/industry proposed (e.g., advanced manufacturing, information technology including AI);
  - Specialized training within residential construction (e.g., weatherization) does not qualify as C+
- The projected labor market outlook demonstrating local need for proposed occupation;

- Which industry-recognized credential(s) will result;
  - Single-skill certificates (e.g., cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR), SERV Safe, Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) Safety Cards) do not qualify as C+
- How local Registered Apprenticeship Programs, employers, labor organizations, or unions will participate in training and hiring;
- The curriculum or training plan;
- How many participants the program anticipates training in the specific C+ industry;
- How the program will incorporate community service, youth leadership development, and work experience opportunities into the occupational skills training; and
- Letters of commitment for any partners supporting the C+ pathway, including at a minimum the work experience employer partner.

Per Executive Order 14269, "Restoring America's Maritime Dominance," DOL encourages C+ proposals that support training for skills relevant to the shipbuilding industry, such as pipefitting, shipfitting, and welding.

DOL encourages YouthBuild funds or other sources to also pay for stipends or subsidized wages during the C+ work experience.

DOL recommends that applicants review the following resources:

- Construction Plus Field Proposal
- <u>TEN 25-19</u> provides information on qualifying credentials.
- <u>TEGL 07-14, Change 1</u> shares a synopsis of what C+ entails.
- WorkforceGPS Construction Plus Framework provides more information about C+ programming and how it can support successful YouthBuild program outcomes.

#### 2. Service Area

DOL evaluates applications on the need for program services and the need for affordable housing in the proposed service area, as determined by poverty and youth labor force participation rates across identified zip codes.

DOL expects grantees to recruit and enroll participants who reside within the service area, but up to 20 percent of enrolled participants may reside elsewhere. Work sites should be within the service area and must be within a reasonable commuting distance of the service area.

#### 3. Staffing

Grantees must have three core positions on staff for at least three years, i.e., 24 months of active programming and 12 months of follow-up. These positions may be part-time for some portion of that period, but the budget narrative should make their allocation to the program clear, e.g., the job developer may be 0.5 FTE during follow-up:

- The Project Manager/Director oversees all aspects of the grant, including staff supervision, program design, and required reporting.
- The Case Manager is responsible for participant files, including documentation of eligibility and services, and planning and documenting follow-up services.

• The Job Developer/Placement Specialist engages potential employers and ensures that youth that get employment placements are meeting employer expectations.

The core program staff described above must be in place before the enrollment of any program participant, not at the time of application. Each core position must be held by different individuals. DOL strongly encourages grantees to hire individuals with backgrounds relevant to the program purpose, such as individuals who have experienced housing instability or resided in low-income neighborhoods.

#### 4. Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968 (12. U.S.C. 1701u)

Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968 requires that certain public construction projects provide job training, employment, and/or contracting opportunities for certain populations, including YouthBuild participants.

More information: WorkforceGPS - HUD Section 3 Partnership

For a complete understanding of this application requirement, see the <u>2025 Application Guide</u>, Section VIII.G Definitions.

#### H. Funding Restrictions, Policies and Limitations

All proposed project costs must be necessary and reasonable and in accordance with federal guidelines.

For a complete understanding of this application requirement, see the <u>2025 Application Guide</u>, Section III.H Funding Restrictions, Policies and Limitations.

#### **Administrative Cost Limitation**

Grantees are limited to **10 percent** of the grant to pay administrative costs that are associated with the program or project. Under 20 CFR 683.215, administrative costs include both personnel and non-personnel costs, as well as direct and indirect costs, in carrying out activities under Title I of WIOA that are not related to the direct provision of workforce investment services (including services to participants and employers). Administrative costs do not need to be identified separately from program costs on the SF-424A Budget Information Form, but they must be tracked through the recipient's accounting system. To claim any administrative costs that are also indirect costs, the applicant must get an Indirect Cost Rate Agreement from its federal Cognizant Agency or be eligible to use the 15 percent de minimis rate (see the 2025 Application Guide, Section III.H Funding Restrictions, Policies and Limitations). For WIOA grants, all costs charged as a result of the de minimis rate will be counted towards the administrative cost limitation specified above.

#### **Evaluation and Data-Related Costs**

Labor and other costs related to data and evaluation are allowable, as defined in 2 CFR Part 200.455. Data and evaluation activities may include staff participating in interviews, focus groups, and surveys; staff working to execute data sharing agreements; staff preparing datasets required for an evaluation; staff participating in evaluation meetings; and other costs related to DOL's evaluations and data-related activities.

#### **Use of Grant Funds for Participant Wages**

Section 171(c)(2) of WIOA permits YouthBuild grantees to use funds to provide needs-based payments, stipends, wages, including subsidized wages, or benefits to help enable program participants to participate in the program. Needs-based payments, stipends, wages, and benefits provided under YouthBuild grants must accord with the policies and procedures of the grantee organization. Wages can compensate youth at the same rates (including periodic increases) as similar trainees or employees in the construction fields, and rates must accord with all applicable laws. Stipends can provide a weekly living allowance to those participating in the program, designed to help with transportation, living expenses, day care, etc. Per Section 181(a)(2) of WIOA, payments to participants in the YouthBuild program do not count as income for the purposes of determining eligibility for and the amount of income transfer and in-kind aid provided to participants through any federal or federally-assisted program, except as provided under the Social Security Act.

Needs-based payments refer to additional payments (beyond regular stipends for program participation) that are based on defined needs that enable youth to participate in the program. Under 20 CFR 688.320(a)(7)(ii), to provide needs-based payments, the grantee must have a written policy in place which defines (1) eligibility; (2) the amounts; and (3) the required documentation and criteria for payments. This policy must be applied consistently to all program participants.

Please note that there are legal and financial obligations activated by paying participants wages or stipends. DOL encourages applicants to seek legal and/or accounting advice before setting up or changing the funding system to ensure compliance with IRS and DOL requirements, and to help participants determine their income tax liability.

#### **Salary and Bonus Limitations**

By law, no "Employment and Training Administration" appropriated funds may be used by a recipient or subrecipient of such funds to pay the salary and bonuses of an individual, either as direct costs or indirect costs, at a rate in excess of Executive Level II. The Executive Level II salary may change yearly and is located on the <a href="OPM.gov website">OPM.gov website</a>. This limitation does not apply to contractors (vendors) providing goods and services as defined in 2 CFR 200.331. Where states are recipients of such funds, states may establish a lower limit for salaries and bonuses paid by subrecipients. To establish these limits, states may consider the relative cost of living in the state, the salary levels for comparable state or local government employees, and the size of the organizations that administer Federal programs involved, including ETA programs. See the Section I.B and the <a href="Program Authority">Program Authority</a> found in TEGL 10-24 for additional information.

# I. Required Partnerships

#### **American Job Centers**

As described in 20 CFR 688.380, a grantee funded under this announcement is a required partner of the local American Job Center (AJC, also known as one-stop career center) and is subject to the provisions relating to such partners described in 20 CFR part 678. As a required partner, the grantee must:

 Provide access to its programs or activities at the AJC and any other appropriate locations;

- Use a portion of funds to provide applicable career services, work collaboratively with Workforce Development Boards (WDBs), and jointly fund the one-stop infrastructure;
- Enter into a memorandum of understanding (MOU) with the Local WDB;
- Participate in the operation of the one-stop delivery system; and
- Provide representation on the WDBs as required and participate in Board committees as needed.

Applicants should initiate the partnership conversation with their Local WDB prior to submitting their grant application to ensure that their proposed budget reflects likely infrastructure sharing costs, shared staffing (such as the job developer, if applicable), etc.

This partnership is a shared responsibility between the AJC and the YouthBuild grantee. Grantees must document efforts to establish this partnership and any challenges (e.g., lack of response from American Job Center staff) and share them with their Federal Project Officer (FPO) as early as possible.

#### IV. APPLICATION CONTENT AND FORMAT

Applications submitted in response to this FOA must consist of four separate and distinct parts:

- A. SF-424, "Application for Federal Assistance";
- B. Project Budget, composed of the SF-424A and Budget Narrative;
- C. Project Narrative; and
- D. Attachments to the Project Narrative.

You must make sure that the funding amount requested is consistent across all parts and subparts of the application. You must submit your application in one package. Documents received separately will be tracked separately and will not be attached to your application for review.

# A. SF-424, Application for Federal Assistance

You must complete the SF-424, "Application for Federal Assistance"

For a complete understanding of this application requirement, see the <u>2025 Application Guide</u>, Section IV.A SF-424 Application for Federal Assistance.

# B. Project Budget, Composed of the SF-424A and Budget Narrative

You must complete the SF-424A Budget Information Form and a Budget Narrative. The Budget and Budget Narrative do not count against the page limit requirements for the Project Narrative.

The Budget Narrative must have a cost-per-participant at or under \$23,000.

#### Participant Enrollment

Applicants must propose the number of participants that they will enroll and serve if funded under this announcement. DOL will divide the amount of funds requested (not including match funds) by this enrollment goal to estimate the cost per participant, which may not exceed \$23,000 at the time of application. For example, a grantee that receives \$1,500,000 must enroll no fewer than 66 participants but may enroll more than 66 participants. The cost per participant creates a minimum goal for participant enrollment during the period of performance; it is not a limit on enrollment or the kinds of supports a grantee can offer any individual participant.

For a complete understanding of this application requirement, see the <u>2025 Application Guide</u>, Section IV.B Project Budget, Composed of the SF-424A and Budget Narrative.

### C. Project Narrative

You must include a Project Narrative with your application. The Project Narrative shows that the applicant can implement the grant project explained in this Announcement. Applicants must describe how they will meet the requirements listed below. Applicants must show that their planned activities will meet the project goals. As appropriate, applicants should see Section IX. Resources, E. DOL's Clearinghouse for Evaluation and Research (CLEAR) and DOL's Chief Evaluation Office as well as F. Data and Other Evidence Resources for starting places to find research that could provide evidence of a sound approach.

The Project Narrative is limited to 25 double-spaced single-sided 8.5 x 11-inch pages with Times New Roman 12-point text font and 1-inch margins. It must include the section headers listed below. The agency will evaluate the Project Narrative using the evaluation criteria identified in Section VI.B. We will not read or consider any materials beyond the specified page limit (except for attachments listed in Section IV.D that impact the scoring of the application).

#### a. Service Area (Up to 12 Points)

#### 1. Youth Labor Force Participation Rate (Maximum 6 Points)

The applicant must provide, across all zip codes that make up the proposed service area, the weighted average labor force participation (LFP) rate (rounded to one decimal place) from the American Community Survey (ACS) LFP data available at http://www.census.gov. The national LFP rate for youth ages 16–24 against which DOL will evaluate applicants is 59.2 percent (using 5-year ACS weighted average estimates as of 2023).

These data are broken into two youth age subsets: 16–19 and 20–24. Applicants must provide, as an attachment, a print-out or screenshot of the ACS data source information used that shows a link to the specific data source. Applicants that fail to provide an attachment showing the ACS data source information used will receive 0 points for the LFP Rate rating factor.

For specific instructions on how to locate and calculate the information requested here, see Appendix A. Additionally, to assist with the weighted average calculations, applicants are encouraged to use the "Weighted Average Worksheet", a formatted Excel spreadsheet available for download at <a href="https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/youth/youthbuild/">https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/youth/youthbuild/</a> under the "Forms" section.

DOL will score applicants based on the weighted average youth LFP rate across the zip codes that the applicant proposes to serve. If the weighted average LFP rate for youth ages 16 to 24 years for the proposed zip code is:

- less than 59.2 percent: 6 Points.
- between 59.2 and 62.2 percent: 4 Points.
- between 62.2 and 65.2 percent: 2 Points.
- greater than 65.2 percent: 0 Points.

#### 2. Poverty Rate (Maximum 6 Points)

The applicant must provide, across all zip codes that make up the proposed service area, the weighted average poverty rate from the ACS poverty data available at <a href="http://www.census.gov">http://www.census.gov</a>.

The national poverty rate against which DOL will evaluate applicants is 12.8 percent (using 5-year ACS estimates as of 2023).

Applicants must provide, as an attachment, the print-out or screenshot of the ACS data source information used. Applicants that fail to provide as an attachment, containing the ACS data source information used will receive 0 points for the Poverty Rate rating factor.

For specific instructions on how to locate and calculate the information requested here, see Appendix B and C. Additionally, to assist with the weighted average calculations, applicants are encouraged to use the "Weighted Average Worksheet", a formatted Excel spreadsheet available for download at <a href="https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/youth/youthbuild/">https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/youth/youthbuild/</a> under the "Forms" section.

DOL will score applicants based on the weighted average poverty rate across all zip codes that the applicant proposes to serve. If the weighted average poverty rate is:

- 12.8 percent or more across all zip codes to be served: 6 Points.
- between 9.8 percent and 12.7 percent across all zip codes to be served: 4 Points.
- between 6.8 percent and 9.7 percent across all zip codes to be served: 2 Points.
- less than 6.7 percent across all zip codes to be served: 0 Points

#### **b.** Education (Up to 14 Points)

As described in Section II.B.2 grantees must offer education services and related activities to participants during at least 50 percent of their active program time.

To receive full points for this section, applicants must fully address each of the following:

- The applicant must describe the academic services that it will offer to YouthBuild participants, including how it will provide participants with opportunities to develop AI literacy skills.
- The applicant must describe how it will provide participants with opportunities to transition to post-secondary education and/or advanced occupational skills training.
- The applicant must describe the qualifications and experience of education staff and the use of partner organizations, where appropriate, for the education component; and how it will determine whether a student has mastered a skill.
- The applicant must describe how the education services align with the hands-on skill training for the construction component of the program and, if applicable, the Construction Plus component. They must include the training strategy, the training schedule and explain the integration between classroom based and hands-on skills training.

### c. Construction and Other Occupational Skills Training (Up to 10 Points)

As described in Section II.B.2, grantees must offer at least 40 percent of their active program time on providing work and skills development activities in occupational skills training.

#### 1. Hands-on Meaningful Learning Activities (Maximum 6 Points)

To receive full points for this section, applicants must fully address each of the following:

- Applicants must describe their plan to ensure that sufficient youth will participate in the construction skills training to build or renovate at least one unit of housing over the grant period of performance. The applicant must also describe the primary construction training curriculum that will be offered and the credential the youth will be receiving.
- The applicant must describe the use of work site safety training as outlined by OSHA to
  ensure youth safety and responsibility on work sites. Applicants may refer to OSHA's
  Youth Safety page available at <a href="https://www.osha.gov/young-workers">https://www.osha.gov/young-workers</a>. Applicants must
  describe how it will provide participants with information on their rights under labor and
  employment laws, including the Fair Labor Standards Act and the Occupational Safety
  and Health Act.
- The roles and responsibilities for all the staff involved in preparing and conducting the trainings, including ensuring the certification of trainers.

#### 2. Connecting Education and Training (Maximum 4 Points)

To receive full points for this section, applicants must fully address each of the following:

- The applicant must describe the curriculum and training plan for each industry training
  offered (construction and Construction Plus, if applicable), including shadowing
  employees in their specialized areas, the plan for ensuring sufficient class and hands-on
  training hours, and the testing and certification process to achieve the credentials to all
  participants.
- Applicants must describe how they will ensure program activities are directly connected
  to and lead to high-quality post-program placements that include: Registered
  Apprenticeship, employment that has high growth potential, and/or career pathways.
- The applicant must describe the industry-recognized credentialing opportunities that it
  will offer to participants, how these credentials align with the industry training's
  provided, and the accrediting agency that supports the recognition of the credential, as
  described in section 7.D of TEGL 10-16, Change 3
  (<a href="https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/advisories/tegl-10-16-change-3">https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/advisories/tegl-10-16-change-3</a>)

#### d. Leadership Development and Community Service (Up to 4 Points)

One of the goals of the YouthBuild program is to foster the development of employment and leadership skills and commitment to community development among youth in low-income communities. As described in Section II.B.2, applicants may allocate up to 10% of their program time on community service and youth leadership opportunities alongside the education and occupational skills training components of the program.

To receive full points for this section, applicants must fully address each of the following:

- The applicant must describe the community service learning and/or leadership development opportunities it will offer participants.
- The applicant must describe how it will train staff to incorporate principles of youth leadership development, and how to encourage youth participant input in program activities.
- e. Program Planning (Up to 8 Points)
- 1. Staffing Strategy (Maximum 4 Points)

To receive full points for this section, applicants must fully address each of the following:

- Describe the staffing strategy during all three program phases (start-up, active program services, and follow-up), how the applicant will retain staff, and address staff turnover if the need arises.
- Where staff are shared among multiple programs of an organization, applicants must indicate in the staffing plan how the organization will track staff time and ensure sufficient resources for the effort.
- The applicant must describe the contingency plan to ensure that alternative services can be quickly implemented should barriers arise, such as inclement weather, loss of worksites, or the loss of certified trainers or program partners.

#### 2. Program Implementation (Maximum 4 Points)

To receive full points for this section, applicants must fully address each of the following:

- Describe how the applicant will document efforts to offer participants the required allotment of activities, i.e., education during at least 50 percent of program time, skills development during at least 40 percent of program time, and leadership development for up to 10 percent of program time.
- The applicant must describe the approach for recruiting, assessing, and supporting the training of participants.
- The applicant must describe the integrated approach to post-program placement planning and follow-up period. These descriptions must include how the applicant plans to minimize the number of participants who cannot be located or contacted during the follow-up period.

#### f. Supportive Services and Post Program Follow-Up (Up to 8 Points)

Applicants must describe the supportive services they will offer participants. Under YouthBuild, as defined in 20 CFR 681.570, allowable supportive services during the active program time and during the required 12-month follow-up period may include the following program elements:

- Linkages to community services;
- Assistance with transportation, childcare, housing, education testing, work attire and work-related tools, books, fees, and school supplies;
- Needs-related payments;
- Reasonable accommodations for youth with disabilities;
- Referrals to health care; and
- Payments and fees for employment and training-related applications, tests, and certifications.

To receive full points for this section, applicants must fully address each of the below items in all industries in which they provide training:

• The applicant must describe how it will ensure that all youth participants are offered supportive services during active program time and in an ongoing manner during the twelve-month post exit period.

- The applicant must describe work readiness and career exploration opportunities offered to youth and how it will provide educational and career counseling.
- The applicant must describe the post-program transition services that it will offer to
  prepare youth for employment placements (including Registered Apprenticeship) and/or
  educational placements, including the use of tuition assistance, scholarships, assessments
  of college and career readiness, the need for ongoing supportive and post-program
  services, and opportunities for advanced training.
- The applicant must describe how it will link participants to opportunities with apprenticeship programs, local community colleges, or four-year colleges, particularly for youth who may receive a state-recognized high school equivalency degree rather than a traditional high school diploma.
- The applicant must describe a clear and feasible plan that ensures the placement of
  participants into post-program employment, which includes the Job Developer engaging
  potential employers, ensuring that youth that get employment placements are meeting
  employer expectations, and creating a network of employment opportunities, including
  internships and unsubsidized employment.

#### g. Partners and Partnership Engagement Strategies (Up to 16 Points)

Applicants must identify and describe the key partners whom the applicant anticipates will help implement and operate the proposed YouthBuild project in all industries in which they provide training. The roles for key partners must be verified through a signed letter of commitment submitted by each partner including any resources committed, match or otherwise, as appropriate. For more details on what match commitment letters must contain, see Section III.B. Letters of commitment will not count against the 25-page limit of the Project Narrative.

#### 1. Partnerships (Maximum 6 Points)

To receive full points for this section, applicants must fully address each of the following:

- The applicant must identify partners and describe how each will support planning, implementation, operation, and meeting the goals of the program. The applicant must include a letter of commitment or an MOU from each partner that clearly specifies their role, contribution(s), associated timeline(s) and, if applicable, any participant activities the partner will oversee.
- The applicant must describe how it will fulfill the responsibilities of being a required onestop partner, including making services available through an American Job Center. Additionally, applicants must describe their approach to accessing industry employers through the Business Services Representatives or other relevant job developer staff at American Job Centers.
- The applicant must describe how it will connect with community colleges, four-year universities, and trade schools to assist youth in applying, enrolling, and seeking financial aid to support continuing post-secondary education.
- The applicant must describe how it will connect with community-based organizations and programs such as Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF), Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP), the WIOA Title II (Adult Education and Family Literacy) and the Title IV (Vocational Rehabilitation) programs. If applicable, the

applicant must describe its approach to co-enrolling participants in the WIOA Title I Youth or Adult programs for access to additional resources.

#### 2. Employer Engagement Strategies (Maximum 6 Points)

To receive full points for this section, applicants must fully address each of the following:

- The applicant must describe its approach for targeting employers, including any distinct approaches used to target specific industry employers (e.g., information technology or healthcare), including through Registered Apprenticeship Programs.
- The Applicants must also describe their outreach strategy to engage with employers. The
  strategy must include how applicants will engage employers to provide youth participants
  with work experience and career exploration activities, and their approach to working
  with the local workforce development board to leverage employer partnerships through
  board members.
- The applicant must describe the approach for ongoing communication with, and feedback from, employers, to ensure the program's engagement strategy meets their needs.

#### 3. Apprenticeship Connections (Maximum 4 Points)

To receive four points for this section, applicants must provide documentation (i.e., memorandum of understanding or letter of commitment) of a partnership with a Registered Apprenticeship Program (RAP) that provides opportunities for direct entry to qualified exited participants. Alternatively, applicants may receive two points for this section if they provide documentation of engagement (e.g., email communication) with the relevant state apprenticeship agency/office to achieve a partnership with a RAP. To receive two points, documentation must include agency/office commitment to facilitate connections with other state apprenticeship stakeholders within four months of award. Documentation without such a commitment will receive zero points. This documentation must be provided as an attachment to the application.

#### h. Budget, Budget Narrative, and Match Narrative (Up to 4 Points)

The budget and Budget Narrative provided as attachments to the application are used to evaluate this section. Please see Section IV.B for information on the requirements. The Budget and Budget Narrative do not count against the page limit requirements for the Project Narrative.

To receive full points for this section, applicants must fully address each of the below items:

- The applicant must provide a budget narrative that describes all the costs associated with
  each line item on the SF-424A. Unless the applicant is eligible for waiver of match, as
  described in section III.B of the FOA, the applicant must also provide a Match Narrative
  that describes the projected match funds expenditures, delineated by the same
  expenditure categories as on the budget narrative. If applicable, both the Budget
  Narrative and Match Narrative must include a description of leveraged resources
  provided to support grant activities.
- The totals on the SF-424A and the Budget Narrative must align.
- Applicants must include, at a minimum, a Project Manager/Director, a Case Manager, and a Job Developer/Placement Specialist, either through direct employment or contracting for some portion of an FTE for all 24 months of active programming and 12 months of follow-up within the period of performance.

• If including Construction Plus, the applicant must clearly document in the budget narrative/match narrative that grant and/or match funds will support the Construction Plus component of the program, either through the cost of the instructor, the cost of tuition at a community college partner, or some other substantial direct training-related cost.

#### i. Past Performance - Category A Programmatic Capability (Up to 24 Points)

Organizations that have previously received and completed a 2017 (FOA-ETA-17-03), 2018 (FOA-ETA-18-04), or 2019 (FOA-ETA-19-04) YouthBuild grant award from DOL will receive points based on past performance demonstrated by their quarterly performance report submissions. DOL will review the WIOA measures, using the outcomes reported in the WIOA Supplemental Report and the Quarterly Financial Report (ETA-9130). Applicants do not need to submit these reports as attachments; DOL will use data previously submitted through the YouthBuild MIS and the DOL financial reporting system. In the event that the requested quarterly report is not submitted or available, the most recent previous report will serve this purpose.

For Category A applicants, DOL will evaluate the three performance measures below for this criterion:

- placement in education or employment in the second quarter after exit;
- placement in education or employment in the fourth quarter after exit;
- credential attainment

If the applicant's organization received multiple YouthBuild awards within the relevant Category A funding years, the applicant's abstract must indicate which grant DOL should evaluate. If the abstract does not indicate a grant, DOL will evaluate the criteria in this section for the most recently awarded grant from the Fiscal Years described above. DOL will review the final quarterly performance report submitted.

Please note: Performance Goals will be scored based on the percentage of the target achieved.

DOL will evaluate Category A applicants using the following criteria:

#### (1) Performance Outcomes (Maximum 21 Points)

Category A applicants that met less than 70% of their qualifying grant's minimum enrollment will receive 0 points for this section.

- i. Placement in Education or Employment in the Second Quarter rate, as defined under WIOA (Maximum 7 Points):
  - 70.00 percent or higher will receive 7 points.
  - 65.00 percent 69.99 percent will receive 6 points.
  - 60.00 percent 64.99 percent will receive 5 points.
  - 55.00 percent 59.99 percent will receive 4 points.
  - 50.00 percent 54.99 percent will receive 3 points.

- 45.00 percent 49.99 percent will receive 2 points.
- 40.00 percent 44.99 percent will receive 1 point.
- 39.99 percent or below will receive 0 points.

# ii. Placement in Education or Employment in the Fourth Quarter, as defined under WIOA (Maximum 7 Points):

- 70.00 percent or higher will receive 7 points.
- 65.00 percent 69.99 percent will receive 6 points.
- 60.00 percent 64.99 percent will receive 5 points.
- 55.00 percent 59.99 percent will receive 4 points.
- 50.00 percent 54.99 percent will receive 3 points.
- 45.00 percent 49.99 percent will receive 3 points.
- 40.00 percent 44.99 percent will receive 1 point.
- 39.99 percent or below will receive 0 points.

#### iii. Credential Attainment rate, as defined under WIOA (Maximum 7 Points):

- 80.00 percent or higher will receive 7 points
- 75.00 percent 79.99 percent will receive 6 points.
- 70.00 percent 74.99 percent will receive 5 points.
- 65.00 percent 69.99 percent will receive 4 points.
- 60.00 percent 64.99 percent will receive 3 points.
- 55.00 percent 59.99 percent will receive 2 points.
- 50.00 percent 54.99 percent will receive 1 point.
- 49.99 percent or below will receive 0 points.

# (2) Spending Rate Analysis During the Original Period of Performance (Maximum 2 Points):

For Organizations that received a YouthBuild award in FY 2017, 2018, or 2019, DOL will award points as follows:

Category A applicants that expended, during the original period of performance:

- at least 90 percent of grant funds and met 100 percent of their match requirement (25 percent of the grant award) will receive 2 points.
- at least 80 percent but less than 90 percent of grant funds and met 100 percent of their match requirement (25 percent of the grant award) will receive 1 point.
- less than 80 percent of grant funds, even if they expended 100 percent of match funds, will receive 0 points.
- did not meet 100 percent of their match requirement (25 percent of the grant award), regardless of the percentage of funds expended, will also receive 0 points.

#### (3) Proof of Completed Unit of Housing (1 Point or No Points))

Submit one Annual Housing Census form that shows the completion of at least one unit of housing from the YouthBuild grant award that qualified your organization as Category A. The form is available for download at https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/youth/youthbuild.

#### j. Past Performance - Category B Programmatic Capability (Up to 24 Points)

Category B applicants must provide data from a previous project, according to the following guidelines:

The Category B applicant must have completed a project similar in size, scope, and outcomes to the YouthBuild program within 5 years of the closing date of this announcement. The applicant may have funded this project directly or through a grant, including DOL grants for which they were a sub-recipient and other federally or non-federally funded assistance agreements. Federally funded assistance agreements include federal grants and cooperative agreements but not federal contracts. Applicants whose role in a grant was as a subgrantee must request verification directly from the grant recipient. It is the responsibility of the applicant to request past grant performance verification, and to do so in a timely manner that allows for response.

Category B applicants must submit a chart of past performance for the most recently completed relevant project that identifies and describes three performance metrics, listed below, and the performance outcomes. Applicants must include the metric of employment/education placement and choose at least one of the two other metrics (or substantially similar metrics) in demonstrating past performance. For the third metric, the applicant may substitute a different metric in lieu of either credential attainment or retention in education or employment, if data for one of these metrics is not available. If the applicant uses a substitute metric, it must have been a requirement established by the applicant's grantor.

#### The metrics include:

- Employment or education placement (required);
- Credential attainment (or similar); and
- Retention in education or employment (or similar)

In the past performance chart, Category B applicants must provide information in the sample chart below:

Name of Previous Grantor Organization:						
Grantor Contact - Name, Title, Signature (if non-ETA grant), E-mail Address, and Telephone Number:						
<b>Project Title and Grant Nun</b>	Project Title and Grant Number:					
<b>Project Period of Performan</b>	Project Period of Performance:					
Number of Participants Enrolled:						
Population Served:						
Performance Goals						
Performance Indicator	Goal	Outcome	Outcome /Goal (Fraction)	Rate of Goal Achievement (Percentage)		

Employment/educ	ation	60	58	58/60	97%	
Credential/degree attainment		100	105	105/100	105%	
<b>Spending Rate A</b>	Spending Rate Analysis					
	Grant Fund Original Pe Performan	riod		l of the	Total Spent / Total Grant Funds	Percentage Rate of Spending:
Example: \$1,000,000	\$800,000				\$800,000/ \$1,000,000	80%

The performance outcomes must be displayed as both a fraction (i.e., the numerator equal to the number of program participants who achieved the identified metric and the denominator equal to the total program participants eligible for the identified metric) and a percentage.

For non-ETA grants, the chart must be signed by the grantor or a signed letter must be provided from the grantor verifying the past performance data on grantor letterhead. Additionally, applicants who funded their own project must provide two points of contact for verification. Category B applicants will receive points based on past performance demonstrated in the performance chart attachment. The performance chart attachment must clearly identify the three metrics and must include a definition for how each outcome is calculated (i.e., the numerator and denominator for the outcome). DOL reserves the right to disqualify any metrics provided which DOL determines are not sufficiently similar to the metrics required above and to award zero points for the non-qualifying metric(s).

DOL expects, at a minimum, that the description of performance metrics will specify the population and outcome of the numerator and those eligible for the outcome in the denominator. For example, if using the employment/education placement metric, a clear performance metric description is: Participants ages 18-21 placed into unsubsidized jobs within one year of program completion divided by all participants ages 18-21 served by the program that completed the program within the past year.

All Category B applicants must provide a performance chart. If a Category B applicant is submitting past performance information about a project it directly funded, the performance chart must clearly state that and list the names and contact information of at least two associated personnel who can verify the performance data. If submitting a grant-funded project, the chart must include previous grantor contact information and a signed past performance chart or a signed grantor verification letter on the grantor's letterhead. Category B applicants that do not provide these items will receive 0 points for rating factors 1-2 below.

Please note: Performance Goals will be scored based on the percentage of the target achieved. DOL will evaluate Category B Applicants using the following criteria:

#### (1) Size and Scope (3 Points or No Points)

As stated, the applicant must have completed a project similar in size and scope to the YouthBuild program within the last five years. Applicants that have not completed a project similar in size and scope to the YouthBuild program within the last five years will receive 0

points for this rating factor and will receive 0 points for the Performance Goals rating factor below.

- Budget of the completed project is at least \$500,000.
- Must have enrolled at least 30 participants during the grant period.
- Must have provided education and workforce development and training services.

#### (2) Performance Outcomes (Maximum 21 Points)

The applicant must choose employment/education placement and at least one of the two other metrics, credential attainment or retention in education/employment (or substantially similar metrics) in demonstrating past performance. For the third metric, the applicant must provide another performance metric, which may be the third metric from the list specified above or a similar metric from their grantor. The applicant will receive 0 points for any metric that does not meet these requirements.

i. Employment/Education Placement **(Maximum 7 points)**. Category B applicants with a placement outcome rate of:

- 75.00 percent or higher will receive 7 points.
- 70.00 percent 74.99 percent will receive 6 points.
- 65.00 percent 69.99 percent will receive 5 points.
- 60.00 percent 64.99 percent will receive 4 points.
- 55.00 percent 59.99 percent will receive 3 points.
- 50.00 percent 54.99 percent will receive 2 points.
- 49.99 percent or below will receive 0 points.

ii. Metric 2 (i.e., Credential) **(Maximum 7 points)**. Category B applicants with a Metric 2 outcome rate of:

- 75.00 percent or higher will receive 7 points.
- 70.00 percent 74.99 percent will receive 6 points.
- 65.00 percent 69.99 percent will receive 5 points.
- 60.00 percent 64.99 percent will receive 4 points.
- 55.00 percent 59.99 percent will receive 3 points.
- 54.99 percent or below will receive 0 points.

iii. Metric 3 (i.e., Retention in Education or Employment) **(Maximum 7 points)**. Category B applicants with a Metric 3 outcome rate of:

- 75.00 percent or higher will receive 7 points.
- 70.00 percent 74.99 percent will receive 6 points.
- 65.00 percent 69.99 percent will receive 5 points.
- 60.00 percent 64.99 percent will receive 4 points.
- 55.00 percent 59.99 percent will receive 3 points.
- 54.99 percent or below will receive 0 points.

#### k. Priority Consideration Points - Educational Freedom (2 Points or No Points)

To receive 2 additional bonus points, applicants must demonstrate in the Abstract:

- 1. they are a private, faith-based, or public charter school (based on Unique Entity Identifier); or
- 2. they have a partnership (e.g., through a memorandum of understanding) with one or more of the following:
  - a. a private, faith-based, or public charter school that includes the provision of education services, such as those specified in 20 CFR 688.320(a)(4) through (7),
  - b. the local school district that establishes the YouthBuild program as an alternative to compulsory secondary education, and/or
  - c. a local postsecondary school (e.g., community college) that includes the opportunity for dual enrollment for participants. Only the Educational Freedom information provided in the Abstract will be reviewed to determine whether the application will receive these priority consideration points.

# l. Priority Consideration Points - Sectoral Priorities: AI Literacy (and Application in Occupational Skills Training) and/or Shipbuilding Trades (Up to 2 Points)

To receive 1 additional bonus point, applicants must demonstrate in the Abstract:

- 1. identify specific efforts that will equip participants with AI literacy skills that they will incorporate within occupational skills training (construction and/or Construction Plus),
- 2. describe the specific content areas of AI literacy skills that participants will be equipped with (e.g., understanding AI's core concepts, capabilities, and limitations, prompting AI effectively, evaluating AI outputs for accuracy, completeness, and relevance, managing AI responsibly),
- 3. describe the specific delivery strategies of the AI literacy efforts within the occupational skills training (e.g., delivering AI literacy through practical, hands-on experiences, integrating AI literacy into existing training and processes, providing structured routes for progressing to more advanced, specialized AI skills), and
- 4. describe how they will track individual participant progress in gaining AI literacy skills.

To receive 1 additional bonus point, applicants must:

- identify specific shipbuilding skills (e.g., pipefitting, welding, machining, shipfitting) for which participants will receive training, and
- describe specific efforts that will equip participants with skills relevant in the shipbuilding industry that they will incorporate within occupational skills training (construction and/or Construction Plus).

To receive both bonus points, applicants must address all six bullets above. It is not sufficient to refer to AI literacy skills or shipbuilding trades generally; applicants must include specific content areas and delivery/tracking strategies for incorporating AI literacy skills and/or shipbuilding trades with industry-related training plans. Also note that only the information

provided in the Abstract will be reviewed to determine whether the application will receive these priority consideration points.

# **D.** Attachments to the Project Narrative

In addition to the Project Narrative, the application also includes required and requested attachments as explained below (see Section VI.A on which required attachments must be submitted in order for the application to be reviewed). These attachments must be clearly labeled and do not count toward the Project Narrative page limit. Any other attachments included beyond those listed below will not be reviewed in the scoring of the application.

We encourage applicants to name the files using the document names listed below. Do not include special characters (e.g. &,-,\*,%,/,#). However, underscores (for example: My\_Attached\_File.pdf) to separate a file name are acceptable.

#### 1. Required Attachments

#### a. Abstract

You must submit an up to three-page abstract summarizing the proposed project. If you do not submit the abstract, your application will still be reviewed, but it may impact your score. See Section VI.A for a list of items that will result in the disqualification of your application. If you are selected for an award, the information provided in your abstract may be published to a public facing website as a summary of your project. The abstract must include the following:

- the applicant's name;
- the project title;
- the funding level requested;
- the cost sharing or matching funds amount;
  - if the applicant is eligible for the matching waiver as described in Section II.B.
     Cost Sharing and intends to waive match, please state so.
- whether the applicant is applying as a Category A (previously-funded) or Category B (new) applicant;
- for a Category A (previously-funded) applicant, the previous YouthBuild grant number that demonstrates qualification of the applicant (i.e., the applicant's grant number from any of the FY 2017 (FOA-ETA-17-03), FY 2018 (FOA-ETA-18-04), or FY 2019 (FOA-ETA-19-04) grant cycles);
- the number of participants to be served;
- the cost-per-participant;
- construction credential offered (e.g., HBI Pact, MC3, NCCER);
- whether the applicant is applying for Construction Plus;
- whether the target service area is urban, rural, or Native American or Tribal
- list of zip codes to be served;
- a brief summary of the proposed project;
- priority consideration provide the Educational Freedom information described in section IV.C.k. of the Project Narrative above;

priority consideration – provide the AI Literacy and Application in Occupational Skills
 Training and/or Shipbuilding Trades information described in section IV.C.l. of the
 Project Narrative above.

#### b. Work Site Form

The applicant must submit a minimum of one and a maximum of three signed Work Site Form(s) (ETA-9143) including all required attachments, which describes the planned work site(s) that the applicant will use for on-site housing rehabilitation and construction training for youth participants. If your application does not include at least one Work Site Form, it will be disqualified and will not move forward through the merit review process. Find this form at <a href="https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/youth/youthbuild/">https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/youth/youthbuild/</a> by selecting "Form ETA-9143 — Work Site and Annual Housing Census" under the Forms section. All applicants must use the ETA-9143 form available at the above website, which as of the date of this FOA has an expiration date of 11/30/2024, and will be updated after that date.

DOL will not accept previous versions of the work site form. Applicants should submit up to three separate work site forms for consideration; DOL will not review more than three work site forms. Note that Attachment E provides instructions for completing the ETA-9143 form and all required attachments.

- Prior to finalization of the grant award document, and before DOL releases grant funds, grantees must reconfirm information about the work site(s) and the applicant's access to the property(ies). DOL may also require this same re-verification process of grantees after their first year of performance to ensure that necessary work sites remain available during the grant cycle.
- Applicants should note that there is a second section of the Work Site Form, called the
  "Housing Census Form." Applicants do not need to fill out this portion of the form at the
  time of application or award. DOL will require this census from awarded applicants in
  August of each year for the previous 12-month period, as a means of tracking the total
  units of housing completed by YouthBuild programs.

#### 2. Requested Attachments

We request the following attachments. If you do not submit the attachments, your application will still be reviewed, but it will impact your score, unless otherwise noted.

#### a. Past Performance Documentation (Category B Applicants Only)

This attachment must include both the Past Performance Chart and the Grantor Verification Letter (if the chart is not signed by the Grantor).

See Section IV.C.j for requirements and sample format chart. Category B applicants that are using a grant provided directly from ETA should not request or provide a grantor signature on the Past Performance Chart.

These documents must be uploaded as an attachment to the application package and labeled "Past Performance."

#### b. Letters of Commitment or MOUs

Submit signed and dated Letters of Commitment or Memoranda of Understanding between the applicant and partner organizations described in IV.C.g.1 of the Project Narrative and/or sub-grantees that propose to provide services to support or evaluate the program model and lead to the identified outcomes.

Additionally, as stated in Section IV.C.g.3 of the Project Narrative, applicants must provide documentation (i.e., memorandum of understanding or letter of commitment) of a partnership with a Registered Apprenticeship Program that provides opportunities for direct entry to qualified exited participants. Alternatively, applicants may provide documentation of engagement (e.g., email communication) with the relevant state apprenticeship agency/office to achieve a partnership with a Registered Apprenticeship.

These letters must be uploaded as an attachment to the application package and labeled "Letters of Commitment."

#### c. Indirect Cost Rate Agreement

If you are requesting indirect costs based on a Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement approved by your federal Cognizant Agency, then attach the most recently approved Agreement. For more information, see the 2025 Application Guide, Section III.H. This attachment does not impact scoring of the application.

This document must be uploaded as an attachment to the application package and labeled "NICRA."

#### d. Financial System Risk Assessment Information

All applicants are requested to submit Funding Opportunity Announcement Financial System Risk Assessment Information. See Section VI.D for additional instructions. This attachment does not impact the scoring of the application.

#### e. Source Documentation for Service Area Data

Applicants must provide print-outs or screenshots of the sources of all data (including American Community Survey data and the Attachment D Excel spreadsheet) used for the youth labor force participation rate and poverty rate so that DOL may validate data and calculations. If an applicant must use alternate sources, the applicant must explain this in the project narrative, along with the citation used and the print-out for that data source. This attachment impacts scoring of the application as discussed in the evaluation criteria in Section IV.C.a.

#### f. Proof of 501(c)(3) or other Non-Profit Status

We encourage entities applying as a non-profit organization to provide verification of 501(c)(3) or other non-profit status. This attachment does not impact scoring of the application.

#### g. Construction Plus Description

Applicants pursuing Construction Plus training must attach the Construction Plus Field Proposal or an alternative document that contains all requested information from the Construction Plus Proposal template for each Construction Plus industry proposed. Category A applicants may propose multiple Construction Plus industries; Category B applicants may

propose no more than one Construction Plus industry. Each attached template or alternative document must not exceed two pages. For any applicant proposing a Construction Plus program, it must include the Construction Plus Field Proposal as an attachment and must describe all additional skills training beyond construction skills training. The Construction Plus Field Proposal Template is available to applicants online under the Forms section: <a href="https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/youth/youthbuild/">https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/youth/youthbuild/</a>. Please note that the Construction Plus Field Proposal Template includes an example of a competed template filled in by a fictional applicant proposing a fictional construction program. As stated, construction training is part of every YouthBuild program application and does not require a separate proposal, this is only an example. This attachment impacts scoring as specified in Section III.G.1.

#### h. Zip Code Map

Please provide a map of the proposed service area zip codes, as produced by <a href="https://www.unitedstateszipcodes.org/">https://www.unitedstateszipcodes.org/</a> or a similar web site that can map zip code areas. This attachment does not impact scoring of the application.

#### i. Proof of Local Presence for Non-Contiguous Service Areas (if applicable)

If applicants propose to serve multiple service areas that are not contiguous or closely located, they must provide as documentation of local organizational presence such as a rental agreement or proof of ownership of office space in each separate service area. This documentation must include the address of each property and the property must not be colocated with other existing YouthBuild programs. The address(es) should correspond to service area(s) identified throughout the application. This attachment does not impact scoring of the application.

# V. SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS AND DEADLINES

# A. How to Obtain an Application Package

This FOA, found at <a href="https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/grants/apply/find-opportunities">www.Grants.gov</a> and <a href="https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/grants/apply/find-opportunities">https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/grants/apply/find-opportunities</a> contains all of the information and links to forms needed to apply for grant funding.

# B. Unique Entity Identifier and System for Award Management

All applicants for Federal grant funding must have a Unique Entity Identifier and be registered in the System for Award Management.

For a complete understanding of this application requirement, see the <u>2025 Application Guide</u>, Section V.B Unique Entity Identifier and System for Award Management.

#### C. Submission Instructions

Applicants must electronically submit their application through <u>Grants.gov</u> by 11:59 p.m. Eastern Time on 03/02/2026. We will not review applications received after 11:59 p.m. Eastern Time on the closing date. We will not accept applications sent by hardcopy (mail or hand delivery), e-mail, telegram, or facsimile (FAX).

For a complete understanding of this application requirement, see the <u>2025 Application Guide</u>, Section V.C Submission Instructions.

# D. Intergovernmental Review

This funding opportunity is not subject to Executive Order 12372, "Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs."

# **E. Other Submission Requirements**

If you encounter a problem with Grants.gov and do not find an answer in any of the other resources, call 1-800-518-4726 or 606-545-5035 to speak to a Customer Support Representative or email <a href="mailto:support@grants.gov">support@grants.gov</a>.

# VI. APPLICATION REVIEW INFORMATION

# A. Responsiveness Review

#### **Application Screening Criteria**

Use the checklist below as a guide when preparing your application package to ensure your application meets all of the screening criteria and contains all required items. Applicants should not include the checklist in the application package. Applications that do not meet all the requirements in the table below will not move forward through the merit review process or be considered for an award.

Application Requirement	Instructions Complete?
Submission requirements are met	Section V.C
Eligibility criteria are met	Section II.A
Components of the application are saved in one of the specified formats and are not corrupt. (We will attempt to open the document but will not take any additional measures in the event of problems with opening.)	Section <u>V.C</u>
SAM Registration	Section V.B
SF-424 includes a Unique Entity Identifier (UEI) and line 18a. is within the grant award range of \$1 million to \$2 million for Category A applicants and \$1 million to \$1.5 million for Category B applicants.	Section <u>V.B</u>
SF-424 lists the 25% cost sharing amount on line 18b, if applicable	Section IV.B
SF-424A, Budget Information Form	Section IV.B
Budget Narrative	Section IV.B
Match Narrative	Section II.B
Project Narrative	Section IV.C
Work Site Form(s) (ETA-9143) for each work site (may submit up to three separate work site forms with attachments; only three work site forms will be reviewed)	Section IV.D

# B. Review Criteria

B. Review Criteria	
Criterion	Points (Maximum)
a. Service Area	12 Points Total
1. Youth Labor Force Participation Rate	6 Points
2. Poverty Rate	6 Points
(See Section IV.C.a)	
b. Education	14 Points
(See Section IV.C.b)	
c. Construction and Other Occupational Skills	10 Points Total
1. Hands-On Meaningful Learning Activities	6 Points
2. Connecting Education and Training	4 Points
(See Section IV.C.c)	
d. Leadership Development and Community Service	4 Points Total
(See Section IV.C.d)	
e. Program Planning	8 Points Total
1.Staffing Strategy	4 Points
2. Program Implementation	4 Points
(See Section IV.C.e)	
f. Supportive Services and Post-Program Follow-up (See Section IV.C.f)	8 Points Total
g. Partners	16 Points Total
1. Partnerships	6 Points
2. Employer Engagement Strategies	6 Points
3. Apprenticeship Connections	4 Points
(See Section IV.Cg)	4 1 011165
	4 Points Total
h. Budget, Budget Narrative, and Match Narrative (See Section IV.C.h)	4 Points Total
i. Past Performance Category A	24 Points Total
1. Performance Outcomes	21 Points
3. Spending Rate Analysis	2 Points
3. Proof of Completed Unit of Housing	1 Point
j. Past Performance Category B	24 Points Total
1. Size and Scope	3 Points
2. Performance Outcomes	21 Points
k. Priority Consideration - Educational Freedom	2 Points Total
l. Priority Consideration - Sectoral Priorities: AI Literacy and/or Shipbuilding Trades	2 Points Total

Total 104

For a complete understanding of this application requirement, see the <u>2025 Application Guide</u>, Section VI.B Review Criteria.

#### C. Review and Selection Process

#### **Merit Review and Selection Process**

A technical merit review panel will carefully evaluate applications based on the selection criteria. As outlined in section <u>VI.B</u> above, the selection criteria are based on the policy goals, and priorities explained in this FOA.

Up to 104 points may be awarded to an applicant, depending on the quality of the responses provided. The final scores (which may include the mathematical normalization of review panels) will serve as the primary basis for selecting applications for funding. The panel results are advisory in nature and not binding on the Grant Officer. The Grant Officer can make selections based solely on the final scores or to take into consideration other relevant factors when applicable. Such factors may include the geographic distribution of funds, Construction Plus industries proposed, availability of funds and other relevant factors. The Grant Officer may consider any information that comes to their attention.

The government may elect to award the grant(s) with or without discussion with the applicant. If a grant is awarded without discussion, the award will be based on the applicant's signature on the SF-424, including electronic signature via E-Authentication on https://www.grants.gov, which constitutes a binding offer by the applicant.

Prior to issuance, and annually thereafter, awards will be subject to review by one or more DOL senior appointees, or their designees, according to the process described in <a href="Executive Order 14332"><u>Executive Order 14332</u></a>, "Improving Oversight of Federal Grantmaking."

#### D. Risk Review

#### **Risk Review Process**

Before making an award, ETA will consider any information about the applicant that is in the responsibility/qualification records available in SAM.gov (see 41 U.S.C. 2313). For ETA to assess the applicant's Financial System, all applicants need to submit the Financial Risk Assessment explained in the application guide (Section VI.D) at the link below. For a complete understanding of this application requirement, see the 2025 Application Guide, Section VI.D Risk Review.

A Financial System Assessment template can be found in the Related Documents tab under this announcement on Grants.gov

#### VII. AWARD NOTICES

#### A. Award Document

A Federal Notice of Award document, signed by the Grant Officer, is the official document that obligates funds. If selected, this document will be provided electronically.

# **B.** Award Timing and Notification to Applicants

All award notifications will be posted on the ETA Homepage at <a href="https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/">https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/</a>. Applicants selected for award will be contacted directly before the grant's execution. Non-selected applicants will be notified by email and may request a written debriefing on the significant weaknesses of their application.

Selection of an organization as a recipient does not mean that their grant application is approved as submitted. Before the actual grant is awarded, we may enter into negotiations about such items as program components, staffing and funding levels, and administrative systems in place to support grant implementation. If the negotiations do not result in a mutually acceptable submission, the Grant Officer reserves the right to terminate the negotiations and decline to fund the application. We reserve the right not to fund any application related to this FOA.

# VIII. POST AWARD REQUIREMENTS AND ADMINISTRATION

# A. Administrative and National Policy Requirements

#### 1. Administrative Program Requirements

All grantees will be subject to all applicable federal laws and regulations, including the OMB Uniform Guidance, and the terms and conditions of the award.

For a complete understanding of this application requirement, see the <u>2025 Application Guide</u>, Section VIII.A Administrative and National Policy Requirements.

#### 2. Religious Activities

Faith-based organizations are encouraged to apply, as are all organizations. Those that meet the eligibility requirements may receive awards under this funding opportunity. DOL will not, in the selection of recipients and administration of the grant, discriminate on the basis of an organization's religious character, affiliation, exercise, or lack thereof, or on the basis of conduct that would not be considered grounds to favor or disfavor a similarly situated secular organization.

For a complete understanding of this application requirement, see the <u>2025 Application Guide</u>, Section VIII.A Administrative and National Policy Requirements.

#### 3. Other Legal Requirements

For a complete understanding of the application requirements on Lobbying or Fundraising with Federal Funds; Transparency Act; Safeguarding Data Including Personally Identifiable Information (PII); Record Retention; Use of Contracts and Subawards; and Grant Closeout, see the 2025 Application Guide, Section VIII.A Administrative and National Policy Requirements.

#### 4. Other Administrative Standards and Provisions

Except as specifically provided in this FOA, our acceptance of an application and an award of federal funds to sponsor any program(s) does not provide a waiver of any grant requirements and/or procedures. For example, the OMB Uniform Guidance requires that an entity's procurement procedures ensure that all procurement transactions are conducted, as much as practical, to provide full and open competition. If an application identifies a specific entity to

provide goods or services, the award does not provide the justification or basis to sole source the procurement (i.e., avoid competition).

For a complete understanding of this application requirement, see the <u>2025 Application Guide</u>, Section VIII.A Administrative and National Policy Requirements.

#### **DOL Disclaimer**

If applicable, a standard ETA disclaimer needs to be on all products developed in whole or in part with grant funds.

For a complete understanding of this application requirement, see the <u>2025 Application Guide</u>, Section VIII.A Administrative and National Policy Requirements.

#### **Intellectual Property Rights and Open Licensing**

All work created using grant funds must be in a format that is readily accessible and available for open licensing to the public. This is required by 2 CFR Part 2900.13, and 2 CFR 200.315(d) to ensure DOL funds have as broad an impact as possible and to encourage innovation and the development of new learning materials.

For a complete understanding of this application requirement, see the <u>2025 Application Guide</u>, Section VIII.A Administrative and National Policy Requirements.

#### **Credential Transparency**

DOL requires that grantees make publicly available information about industry-recognized credentials using linked open data formats that support full transparency and interoperability. This ensures individuals, employers, educators, and training providers have access to the most complete, current and beneficial information about providers, programs credentials, and competencies supported by federal funds.

For a complete understanding of this application requirement, see the <u>2025 Application Guide</u>, Section VIII.A Administrative and National Policy Requirements.

#### **WIOA Infrastructure**

All one-stop partner programs including all programs funded under title I of WIOA are required to contribute to the infrastructure costs and certain additional costs of the one-stop delivery system in proportion to their use and relative benefits received as required in 20 CFR 678.700 and 678.760. The sharing and allocation of infrastructure costs between one-stop partners is governed by WIOA sec. 121(h), WIOA's implementing regulations, and the federal Cost Principles contained in the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards at 2 CFR Part 200 (Uniform Guidance). The federal Cost Principles state that a partner's contribution is an allowable, reasonable, necessary, and allocable cost to the program and is consistent with other legal requirements. A list of the required One-Stop partner programs is available at 20 CFR 678.400.

#### 5. Special Program Requirements

#### a. DOL Evaluation

As a condition of grant award, as per 2 CFR Part 200.301, grantees are required to participate in an evaluation, if undertaken by DOL.

For a complete understanding of this application requirement, see the <u>2025 Application Guide</u>, Section VIII.A Administrative and National Policy Requirements.

#### **b.** Performance Goals

Applicants will be held to outcomes provided in their application. Failure to meet outcomes may result in technical assistance, intervention by ETA, or may have a significant impact on future grants with ETA.

# **B.** Reporting

You must meet DOL reporting requirements for quarterly financial and performance reports.

For a complete understanding of this application requirement, see the <u>2025 Application Guide</u>, Section VIII.B Reporting.

#### IX. RESOURCES

For additional information on A. Web-Based Resources; B. Industry Competency Models and Career Clusters; C. WorkforceGPS; D. SkillsCommons; E. DOL's Clearinghouse for Evaluation and Research (CLEAR); and F. Data and Other Evidence Research Resources, see the <a href="https://doi.org/10.1007/journal.com/2015/2015/2015/">2025/2015/<a href="https://doi.org/10.1007/journal.com/2015/2015/">2025/<a href="https://doi.org/10.1007/journal.com/2015/">2025/<a href="https://doi.org/10.1007/">2025/<a href="https://doi.org/1

YouthBuild - Related Guidance Resources

Applicants should refer to the following advisories for policy and guidance related to YouthBuild. All documents are available at <a href="https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/advisories">https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/advisories</a>.

TEGL 12-22 – Award Closeout Process for Expired Grants and Agreements

TEGL 09-22 – Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act Title I Youth Formula Program Guidance

TEGL 23-19, Change 2– Guidance for Validating Required Performance Data Submitted by Grant Recipients of U.S. Department of Labor (DOL) Workforce Programs

TEN 25-19 – Understanding Postsecondary Credentials in the Public Workforce System

TEGL 14-18 – Aligning Performance Accountability Reporting, Definitions, and Policies Across Workforce Employment and Training Programs Administered by the U.S. Department of Labor (DOL)

TEGL 26-16 – Guidance on the use of Supplemental Wage Information to implement the Performance Accountability Requirements under the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act

TEGL 17-16 – Infrastructure Funding of the One-Stop Delivery System

TEGL 16-16 – One-Stop Operations Guidance for the American Job Center Network

TEGL 11-16, Change 1 – YouthBuild Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Acts (DBRA)

TEGL 10-16, Change 3 – Performance Accountability Guidance for Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) Title I, Title II, Title III and Title IV Core Programs

TEN 08-16 – Implementation of an Integrated Performance Reporting System for Multiple Employment and Training Administration (ETA) and Veterans' Employment and Training Service (VETS) Administered Programs

TEGL 06-15 – Qualifying Work Sites and Construction Projects for YouthBuild Grantees

TEGL 07-14, Change 1 – Updated Guidance for Implementing the "Construction Plus" Component of the YouthBuild Program, as authorized by the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA)

TEGL 35-12 – Definition and Guidance on Allowable Construction Credentials for YouthBuild Programs

TEGL 05-10, Change 1 – Updated Guidance on Match and Allowable Construction and Other Capital Asset Costs for the YouthBuild Program

TEGL 14-09 – Mental Toughness/Orientation Allowable Costs in a YouthBuild Program

TEN 44-07 – Providing Strategies to the One-Stop Career Center System on Collaborating with YouthBuild Programs.

The following reports are available at <a href="https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/research/publications">https://www.dol.gov/agencies/eta/research/publications</a>

Research Report: Laying a Foundation: Four-Year Results from the National YouthBuild Evaluation

Research Report: Building a Future: Interim Impact Findings from the YouthBuild Evaluation

Research Report: Adapting to Local Context: Findings from the YouthBuild Evaluation Implementation Study

Research Report: Models of Youth Registered Apprenticeship Expansion

#### X. OMB INFORMATION COLLECTION

OMB Information Collection No 1225-0086, Expires June 30, 2028.

According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, no persons are required to respond to a collection of information unless such collection displays a valid OMB control number. Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 50 hours per response, including time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information.

Send comments about the burden estimated or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the U.S. Department of Labor, to the attention of the Departmental Clearance Officer, 200 Constitution Avenue NW, Room N1301, Washington, D.C. 20210. Comments may also be emailed to: DOL\_PRA\_PUBLIC@dol.gov.

PLEASE DO NOT RETURN YOUR GRANT APPLICATION TO THIS ADDRESS. SEND ONLY COMMENTS ABOUT THE BURDEN CAUSED BY THE COLLECTION OF INFORMATION TO THIS ADDRESS. SEND YOUR GRANT APPLICATION TO THE SPONSORING AGENCY AS SPECIFIED EARLIER IN THIS ANNOUNCEMENT.

This information is being collected for the purpose of awarding a grant. DOL will use the information collected through this "Funding Opportunity Announcement" to ensure that grants are awarded to the applicants best suited to perform the functions of the grant. This information is required to be considered for this grant.

Signed December 23, 2025 in Washington, D.C. by:

Chaya Anderson

Grant Officer, Employment and Training Administration

# APPENDIX A - Instructions for Finding Labor Force Participation Data Using the United States Census Bureau Data

Please find the Weighted Average Labor Force Participation Data Worksheet at <u>YouthBuild</u> <u>U.S. Department of Labor (dol.gov)</u> under Forms.

- 1. Go to <a href="https://data.census.gov/">https://data.census.gov/</a>
- 2. Type: S2301 in the box and click the first "S2301: Employment Status".
- 3. At the top of the table, beneath the table name, click on the box that says "2024: ACS 1-Year Estimates Subject Tables' and switch to '2023: ACS 5-Year Estimates Subject Tables'.
- 4. Next, on the left hand side of the page, under Geographies, click "Zip Code Tabulation Area"
- 5. Select your state.
- 6. Search for your zip code then select your zip code, or if using multiple zip codes, select all applicable zip codes.
- 7. Once you select the applicable zip code(s) click the X at the top right of the box.
- 8. First determine the civilian labor force for each age group. To find the civilian labor force for each age group, use the labor force participation rate estimate for the populations aged 16 to 19 and 20 to 24 (Scroll right on the table to find the labor force participation rate estimate). Multiply the total estimated population of that age group by the labor force participation rate for the same population to determine the civilian labor force number.
- 9. Next, to determine the total number of unemployed youth in each age group, use the labor force participation rate estimate for the populations 16 to 19 years and 20 to 24. Multiply the civilian labor force of that age group by the labor force participation rate for the same population. Add the two numbers together to determine the total number of youth aged 16 to 24 that are unemployed within the zip code.
- 10. Divide the total unemployed population aged 16 to 24 by the total civilian labor force aged 16 to 24 (as determined by adding the total civilian labor force value for 16 to 19 and 20 to 24) to provide a weighted average rate of youth labor force participation in the targeted area(s).
- 11. If serving an area that encompasses multiple zip codes, add together the total estimated number of unemployed youths in each age group for each zip code and divide this total number by the total civilian labor force value for 16 to 24 for all zip codes. Divide the total number of youth unemployed across all zip codes by the total civilian labor force across all zip codes to determine the weighted average labor force participation rate for the proposed service area.

# **APPENDIX B - Instructions for Finding Poverty Data Using the United States Census Bureau Data**

Please find the Poverty Data Worksheet at <u>YouthBuild | U.S. Department of Labor (dol.gov)</u> under Forms.

- 1. Go to <a href="https://data.census.gov/">https://data.census.gov/</a>
- 2. Type: S1701 in the box and click the first "S1701: Poverty Status in the Past 12 Months"
- 3. At the top of the table, beneath the table name, click on the box that says "2024: ACS 1-Year Estimates Subject Tables' and switch to '2023: ACS 5-Year Estimates Subject Tables'.
- 4. Next, on the left hand side of the page, under Geographies, click "Zip Code Tabulation Area"
- 5. Select your state.
- 6. Select your zip code, or if using multiple zip codes, select all applicable zip codes.
- 7. Once you select the applicable zip code(s) click the X at the top right of the box.
- 8. To determine poverty rates, use the "percent below poverty level" estimate for the total population for your target service area.
- 9. If serving an area that encompasses multiple zip codes, add the below poverty level estimate for the total population for whom poverty status is determined for each zip code to be served. Add the total estimated population for whom poverty status is determined for each zip code. Divide the total number below poverty level across the zip codes being targeted by the total population for whom poverty status is determined. This is your weighted average poverty rate for the proposed service area.

# APPENDIX C - Instructions for Finding Poverty Data Using the United States Census Bureau Data for Indian reservations, Oklahoma Tribal Statistical Areas, Native Alaskan Villages, or Native Hawaiian Homelands

Please find the Poverty Data Worksheet at <u>YouthBuild | U.S. Department of Labor (dol.gov)</u> under Forms.

- 1. Go to <a href="https://data.census.gov/advanced">https://data.census.gov/advanced</a>
- 2. On the left-hand side of the page, under the Topics heading click on "Income and Poverty"
- 3. In the middle of the page, select "Poverty." It has a little arrow icon next to it. Then select the "Poverty" check box and click "Search" on the bottom right of the screen.
- 4. Go to the left-hand side of the screen under "Geographies". Click on "All Geography" and select "American Indian Area/Alaska Native Area/Hawiian Homeland".
- 5. Here is where you can select a reservation, Oklahoma Tribal Statistical Area, or Hawaiian Homeland.
- 6. At the very top of the dropdown menu you can use the search function to search for a specific reservation, Oklahoma Tribal Statistical Area, or Hawaiian Home Land. In this example, the search function was used for the White Earth Reservation in Minnesota.
- 7. After selecting the White Earth Reservation, click on the "Search" button at the very bottom right hand corner of the screen.

- 8. The 24.4% poverty rate shown is the poverty rate for all people on the White Earth Reservation. To show the poverty for American Indians alone living on the White Earth Reservation click on "Explore Data" underlined in red immediately above the 24.4%.
- 9. In the table that comes up, scroll down to American Indian and Native Alaskan alone and to the right to see the which is the poverty rate to submit in your application.